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Workplace Health and Safety (WHS) RFA 2017 Questions and Answers 
Updated 12/8/2017 

(New questions and answers are listed below after the indicated revision date.) 

Q #1) We currently have an occupational safety and health training and education contract with the 
NYSDOL Hazard Abatement Board (HAB).  We are considering applying to your agency for a 
Workplace Health and Safety grant.  Our proposal would target a separate worker population than 
the HAB grant, and would focus on a separate workplace hazard.  Would we be eligible to apply?  
Or does your organization’s definition of “entity” preclude us from applying? 

A #1) You are eligible to apply.  As noted in section III.B. of the Workplace Health and Safety RFA, 
“applicants with existing or pending contracts with NYSDOL remain eligible to apply for funding 
under this WHS RFA as long as the application does not propose training or services to the same 
individual or entity as the existing or pending NYSDOL contract.  In addition, the payments 
requested cannot duplicate reimbursement from other sources of funding.” 

Q #2) Are awards being awarded on an ongoing basis or will they be awarded in January 2018. 

A #2) Awards for the Workplace Health and Safety RFA are being made on an ongoing basis.  As 
noted in section II.A. of the RFA, “applications will be reviewed and award determinations will be 
made in the order in which the applications are received.  Interested applicants should submit their 
proposals early and not wait.  Funding expires March 31, 2018 and is not anticipated to be 
appropriated in future NYS budgets.  If funding becomes limited prior to the closing date of this RFA 
on December 29, 2017, the program will be suspended with adequate notice in the NYS Contract 
Reporter and also posted on NYSDOL’s Funding Opportunity webpage 
(https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm).  Applications received after suspension date 
will not be given funding consideration.  Upon review, NYSDOL may decide to continue this 
program with limited funds, or issue an alternate Request for Proposals (RFP) that outlines a 
competitive award process.” 

Q #3) What is anticipated timeframe from submission to approval? 

A #3) The average timeframe from submission to award in the previous Workplace Health and 
Safety RFA was 31 days. 

Q #4) It would be helpful to develop a tool kit for how they do the training including teaching 
approaches, specific materials, recruitment methods etc.  That is something we could develop and 
make publicly available.  It would mainly involve budgeting our staff time.  Do you think that is 
something that fits within the scope? 

A #4) Yes.  As noted in section II.B.1., “learning aids that are directly related to the proposed 
training” are allowable costs. 

New Questions as of 7/7/17 start below: 

Q #5) Are community colleges are eligible to apply for the Workplace Health and Safety funding? 

A #5) Yes.  Community Colleges, as governmental entities, are considered non-profit by the 
Internal Revenue Service and are therefore eligible to apply. 

https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm
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New Questions as of 7/14/17 start below: 

Q #6) With regards to the RFA, Workplace Health and Safety, Bid Number WHS RFA-#11, if a bidder is a 
subcontractor with one organization for funds, can the bidder also apply independently for funds? 

A #6) The WHA RFA does not prohibit organizations from being the lead applicant for one award 
and a sub-contractor for another contractor’s award.  However, each contract must be separate 
and distinct and no two contracts may provide training or service to the same participant.  Further, 
the organization must consider its ability to successfully complete all activities and serve all 
participants as agreed to, both in the awarded contract and in sub-contract responsibilities. 

Q #7) Would NYSDOL be willing to work with bidders that submit an application built on the contingency 
that Federal monies are not forthcoming, they are presently being held up, but we downgrade our 
NYS commitment if the Federal commitment (from OSHA/Harwood funding) comes through in full 
or in part? 

A #7) Yes.  While it is expected that the bidder is submitting for programming that it expects to 
provide for NYSDOL, the final determination of what will be provided is negotiated as part of the 
final contract negotiation process or through a contract amendment.  As noted in section VI.A. of 
the Workplace Health and Safety Request for Applications, “Applicants who receive an award must 
be prepared to enter into contract negotiations immediately, and begin project activities upon 
execution of the contract.”  Section V.A.3. notes “during the award process and contract 
negotiations, if it is determined that ineligible costs were included in the application, those costs 
will not be included in the final contract.” 

Q #8) I am trying to apply for this grant opportunity through the website but I’m unable to begin the 
process.  Would you be able to assist me with beginning the application? 

A #8) Interested parties must apply online via the Grants Gateway website at 
http://grantsreform.ny.gov.  The first step is to register and pre-qualify with the Grants Gateway 
system in order to enter into a contract with New York State.  Follow the instructions at 
https://grantsgateway.ny.gov/IntelliGrants_NYSGG/module/nysgg/goportal.aspx.  The WFA RFA 
can also be found at https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm. 

New Questions as of 7/21/17 start below: 

Q #9) Would health/safety training programs offered online be acceptable – either alone or with a face-
to-face training module?  If so, are there any guidelines for acceptable organizations offering such 
online training? 

A #9) Yes.  Online health/safety training programs, whether alone or with a face-to-face training 
module would be acceptable.  There are no set guidelines for acceptable organizations offering 
such online training. 

Q #10) May a governmental organization, either federal or state, such as OSHA, be allowable as trainers 
for this project for our non-profit organization? 

A #10) Yes.  While a governmental organization is an allowable trainer, no reimbursements will be 
allowed for any trainings that are offered publicly for free or for trainers whose salaries are already 
paid through Federal or State funding. 

http://grantsreform.ny.gov/
https://grantsgateway.ny.gov/IntelliGrants_NYSGG/module/nysgg/goportal.aspx
https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm
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Q #11) If we plan to hire an external trainer as a sub-contractor on this grant, must we first have three 
bids from different potential sub-contractors (in preparation for submitting the grant budget?)? 

A #11) Yes.  As noted in section V.A.3. of the WHS RFA, “The reasonableness of the cost associated 
with the activities is based on a comparison of activity costs with like activities of two other similar 
providers that show the chosen provider’s costs to be lower or comparable.  If less than three 
similar providers were contacted, the applicant must provide compelling justification for doing so 
and the reasonableness of the per-hour and per-person costs.” 

Q #12) If one or more of our staff members (non-experts in health/safety training) are included in the 
budget for helping to tailor curriculum and training evaluations to our targeted group (with main 
training offered by external experts), would this staff time be considered direct or indirect 
(administrative) staff costs?  Am I correct in my assumption that staff time spent on scheduling 
trainees and overall program management would be considered indirect (administrative) costs? 

A #12) You are correct.  Activities for helping to tailor curriculum and training evaluations, as well as 
staff time spent on scheduling trainees and overall program management, would be considered 
part of the indirect (administrative) costs. 

Q #13) Would the creation of an “employee health and safety” designated area on our employee Intranet 
portal be an allowable cost?  A standalone “Health and Safety Tips” newsletter for staff? 

A #13) Yes.  As noted in section II.B.2. of the WHS RFA, only “newsletters, factsheets, language lines, 
websites, or other publications” that “solely provide information directly related to improving 
workplace safety and health” would be allowed. 

Q #14) Is a “train the trainer” component an allowable cost if provided by an outside expert to an internal 
non-expert staff member?  The purpose would be to allow one or two staff members to conduct 
in-service refresher sessions to new staff in the future. 

A #14) Yes.  As noted in section III.B. of the WHS RFA, “there is no minimum or maximum number of 
individuals to be served under this WH RFA.”  An outside expert training an internal non-expert 
staff member is an allowable cost. 

Q #15) We are a not-for-profit certified home health care agency.  We have an affiliated NYS licensed 
home care agency that is a for-profit entity (separate entity, but same corporate ownership).  Staff 
from the for-profit entity could also benefit from this training.  As the lead contractor for the grant, 
would we be able to include this for-profit affiliate as another business group to which we would 
provide training through this grant? 

A #15) Yes.  Not-for-profit bidders may submit applications as a lead applicant of a consortium of 
entities.  The consortium may include one or more for-profit entities that will also benefit from 
training employed workers in occupational health and safety hazard awareness and prevention. 

Q #16) I understand the grant does not pay for staff time while in training.  However, our staff would have 
to be replaced in the field by other staff while they are in training.  Would replacement staff costs 
be allowable? 

A #16) No.  As stated in section II.B.2., the WHS RFA will not pay for wages or stipends paid to 
workers while in training.  This restriction also applies to replacement workers. 
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Q #17) In reviewing the RFA, I saw that “Language Line” was an exclusion unless used specifically to 
improve H&S.  We included funding for Language Access for our hotline, for in person 
interpretation for our previous WHS contract which was approved.  We planned to again include 
language support for the hotline to assist workers with workplace issues and are exploring 
expanding it to cover Deaf and Hard of Hearing workers.  Will Hotline language support continue 
to be an approved activity or was this a specific change? 

A #17) The language line exclusion was added to clarify that WHS funding is not intended to fund 
general translation or interpretation services but will allow expenditures related to establishing or 
expanding such resources for the sole provision of providing information directly related to 
improving workplace safety and health. 

Q #18) In calculating administrative costs for staff helping to develop training, would I need to include 
fringe for them in the budget, in addition to their salaries?  (That is, is the admin salary + fringe 
included in the admin cap?) 

A #18) As noted in Question 4, “activities for helping to tailor curriculum and training evaluations, as 
well as staff time spent on scheduling trainees and overall program management, would be 
considered part of the indirect (administrative) costs.”  Section V.A.3.f. specifies “Indirect costs for 
this funding opportunity will be the approved federally recognized indirect cost rate negotiated 
between the applicant and the Federal government; if no such rate exists, then 10% of the modified 
total direct cost of the proposed budget” is to be used.  In calculating the 10% of the modified total 
direct cost of the proposed budget, it is suggested that the sum of the other budget categories 
(salaries, fringe, contractual, travel, operating expenses, and other) be multiplied by 10%. 

New Questions as of 8/25/17 start below: 

Q #19) I am writing to inquire if we must complete the following documents: Minority and Women-
Owned Business Enterprises Utilization Plan and Requirements; Application for Waiver of Minority 
and Women-Owned Business Enterprise Participation Goal; Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned 
Business Utilization Plan and Requirements; and/or Application for Waiver of Service-Disabled 
Veteran-Owned Business Participation Goal.  We are a university and intend to conduct this 
training with our own in-house instructor pool and these forms seem to only be pertinent when 
work is subcontracted. In addition, the RFP indicates that they are required documents, yet the 
Grants Gateway does not distinguish them with a red asterisk, as it does for the other clearly-
required forms. 

A #19) Please refer to section II.H. of the Workplace Health and Safety 2017 RFA, item 2 and 3, 
which indicate: 

2. “If the bidder will not use subcontractors or suppliers to fulfill services, or will be unable to 
meet the MWBE Goals, then it must submit the Application for Waiver of MWBE 
Participation Goal.” 

3. “Successful bidders must document “good faith efforts” to provide meaningful participation 
by SDVOBs as subcontractors or suppliers in the performance of the contact.”  If bidders 
will not be using subcontractors or suppliers to fulfill services, then it must submit the 
Application for Waiver of Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Participation Goal. 

Note: these four forms were not individually distinguished as required within the Grants Gateway 
system to enable a bidder/applicant to submit either a Utilization Plan or an Application for Waiver 
for each of the participation requirements (MWBE and SDVOB).  If indicated as required in the Grants 
Gateway system, bidders/applicants would have been required to submit all four documents.   
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Bidders/applicants are required to submit two forms:  
1. Either a Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises Utilization Plan or the 

Application for Waiver of Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprise Participation 
Goal; as well as  

2. Either a Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Utilization Plan or the Application for 
Waiver of Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Participation Goal. 

Q #20) Would NYSDOL reimburse through the Workplace Health and Safety RFA for the equipment to 
establish a mobile training center that would contain a variety of personal protective equipment 
for live field demonstrations, both printed and video training materials, that would increase 
compliance in Avoiding Workplace Violence and provide training on safe handling of materials 
encountered due to the opioid epidemic (an emerging hazard) as well as training on fire safety and 
evacuations.  The mobile training center would enable both one-on-one sessions inside at training 
center seats and group presentations in the field.  Field set up would include a pull-down screen on 
the outside for slide presentations. 

A #20) Yes, the training topics identified would be allowed as long as there is exposure to an 
identified target population from these hazards.  In order to fully answer the questions under the 
Target Population section, proposals should have a specific target group.  The purchase of a mobile 
van as essential training equipment would have to have strong justification as most community 
groups work collaboratively to obtain training locations.  While the mobile van concept is a great 
idea, it is not likely to be funded with Workplace Health and Safety program funding without 
extraordinary justification. 

Q #21) Is CPR & First Aid training for workers an allowable activity under the WHS grant?  

A #21) Yes. 

New Questions as of 9/22/17 start below: 

Q #22) Could you please advise me on how to answer question f, “How the applicant will notify the 
Department of Labor of the training schedule, including topic, date, time, location and site contact 
for attendance and auditing of the programs (4 points)”?  What is the DOL looking to get as a 
reporting framework or format?  We have internal auditing programs in place.  Please let me know 
what you prefer to get from us in accounting for the project. 

A #22) NYSDOL must be notified of any training funded through the WHS funding opportunity at 
least 2 weeks prior to the training.  This advanced notice will allow for the scheduling of a possible 
site visit during the training period, should NYSDOL so desire this monitoring method.  A list of 
upcoming trainings can be emailed to the assigned NYSDOL contractor manager during or after the 
completion of the contracting process. 

Q #23) Many of our home health care workers must drive long distances in all types of weather to safely 
reach their patients at home, many in rural areas.  Would a training course on driving safety be 
allowable within the RFA? 

A #23) Yes, this could be one component of a training funded through the WHS RFA funding 
opportunity as long as it was a requirement of the job.  However, applicants are encouraged to also 
address other “occupational hazards” in their application as an exclusive focus on driver safety 
training may not attain a score sufficient for award selection as detailed in section V of the RFA. 
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Q #24) We have a contract pending NYSDOL signature, can the same entity apply for funding under WHS 
RFA #11? 

A #24) Yes.  As noted in section III.A. of the Workplace Health and Safety RFA #11, “Applicants with 
existing or pending contracts with NYSDOL remain eligible to apply for funding under this WHS RFA 
as long as the application does not propose training or services to the same individual or entity as 
the existing or pending NYSDOL contract.  In addition, the payments requested cannot duplicate 
reimbursement from other sources of funding.” 

Q #25) We are filling out the waiver request form for this submission, are we still required to provide 
utilization plans when we submit? 

A #25) No.  As noted in section IV.D. of the WHS RFA-#11, the Application for Waiver documents are 
submitted “instead of” the Utilization Plans. 

Q #26) Is there any way that a for-profit business can successfully file a proposal before the December 
deadline? 

A #26) Yes, For-Profit businesses can collaborate with not-for profit organizations.  For-profit 
businesses can be part of a consortium that is funded through an application submitted by a not-
for-profit. 

New Questions as of 10/16/17 start below: 

Q #27) I am a for profit MWBE certified company, so am I eligible to apply for the RFP Workplace Health & 
Safety RFA? 

A #27) No. Only not-for-profit organizations are eligible to apply. For-profit businesses can 
collaborate with not-for profit organization applicants. For-profit businesses can also be part of a 
consortium that is funded through an application submitted by a not-for-profit organization. 

Q #28) Under 2B, the reasonableness section, I’m having difficulty finding training firms to compare what 
we’re proposing.  We don’t plan on using subcontractors.  Do we then fill out Section 3 instead for 
a variance? 

A #28) Yes, as noted in the instructions for Section 2B of the Budget Worksheet, “If fewer than three 
providers were compared, or the selected provider is not the lowest cost, complete Section 3 of the 
Budget Worksheet.”  Compelling justification would include the existence of only one available 
provider. 

Q #29) Is there an existing NYSDOL grant that would overlap with this RFA?  

A #29) No.  Applicants that apply to other NYSDOL funding opportunities remain eligible to apply for 
funding under this WHS RFA as long as the application does not propose training or services to the 
same individual or entity as other proposals or applications submitted to NYSDOL. 

Q #30) As we are a not-for-profit union, and not a consultant, trade organization or acting as a third party, 
are we eligible to apply for the grant? 

A #30) Yes.  Not-for-profit organizations may apply. 
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Q #31) I am reaching out to you regarding the Workplace Health and Safety 2017grant.  Is this funding 
opportunity still available? 

A #31) Yes.  The Workplace Health and Safety RFA (WFA RFA-#11) is located at 
https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm.  The deadline for the submission of 
applications is ongoing until December 29, 2017. 

Q #32) I am perusing the NYSDOL funding opportunities.  The “Businesses Eligible” column on the funding 
priorities page indicates “No” next to the WHS RFA.  Would you please clarify this for me? 

A #32) Only not-for-profit organizations are eligible to apply.  For-profit businesses can collaborate 
with not-for profit organization applicants.  For-profit businesses can also be part of a 
consortium that is funded through an application submitted by a not-for-profit organization. 

Q #33) Is this WHS grant meant for organizations to provide training to workers outside of their 
organization? 

A #33) Applicants may propose to provide training to workers inside or outside of their organization. 

Q #34) Can the funds be used to expand/improve current training programs for our own employees 
working in direct support? 

A #34) Yes.  Use of funds, including allowable and unallowable costs, is described in section II.B. of 
the RFA.  Proposed training programs must adhere to the intent of the funds and must not 
include items indicated in the “Restrictions on the use of funds” section. 

Q #35) Is a “train the trainer” component an allowable cost if provided by an outside expert to an internal 
non-expert staff member?  The purpose would be to allow one or two staff members to conduct 
in-service refresher sessions to new staff in the future. 

A #35) Yes.  As noted in section III.B. of the WHS RFA, “there is no minimum or maximum number of 
individuals to be served under this WH RFA.”  An outside expert training an internal non-expert 
staff member is an allowable cost. 

New Questions as of 10/20/17 start below: 

Q #36) Regarding Section 2c of the Budget Worksheet: what is the definition of “training or service-
related purchased item?”  Is this just for equipment? 

A #36) No.  This section is not just for equipment.  As noted in the description, applicants must list a 
comparison for “each purchased item” related to the provision of the training or service described 
in the application.  In addition to any purchases proposed, if the applicant is sub-contracting for a 
portion or all of the training or service to be provided, the cost must be compared with the cost 
from other providers. 

New Questions as of 11/06/17 start below: 

Q #37) I’m trying to figure out how we could enumerate all of our consumables and training materials.  Is 
there a “Consumables” category that we can us? 

A #37) Expendable materials, such as paper, pens, toner, etc., may be listed on the budget as 
“consumable supplies”.  Applicants may use Budget Worksheet #3 to justify why three quotes were 

https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm
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not obtained for each of the individual items.  The applicant can explain how they calculated the 
cost and document the organizational policy for purchasing such items.  This is acceptable 
justification for not obtaining additional quotes.  The purpose of the Budget Worksheet is to prove 
that the proposed budget is a reasonable and cost effective means of performing the proposed 
Work Plan.  Responsibility is placed on the applicant to prove that services to be obtained and items 
to be purchased are at the lowest cost, or provide justification if otherwise. 

Q #38) I have a question pertaining to the grant proposal section H2 on MWBE documentation.  Does this 
apply to all grant proposals, or is there a dollar amount to which this applies?  For example, if our 
total grant is under $25,000, does this still apply? 

A #38) No.  New York State Executive Law Article 15-A (MWBE Contract Goals) and Article 17-B 
(SDVOB) only apply to grants/contracts with a value in excess of $25,000. 

New Questions as of 11/10/17 start below: 

Q #39) Am I correct in understanding that if a nonprofit organization applies for this grant, that all funds 
have to be used by March 31, 2018?  The due date of the application is December, and would then 
allow for only 3 months of programming?  

A #39) That is correct.  Please note the WHS RFA-#11 was originally released on June 28, 2017 with 
awards being made on an ongoing basis.  As noted in section II.A. of the RFA, “applications will be 
reviewed and award determinations will be made in the order in which the applications are 
received.  Interested applicants should submit their proposals early and not wait.  Funding expires 
March 31, 2018 and is not anticipated to be appropriated in future NYS budgets.” 

Q #40) Under “Restrictions on the use of funds,” would you please explain what is meant by 
“Development of academic curricula for the education of occupational safety and health 
professionals or support personnel”?  We are planning to hire instructors to train on a variety of 
workplace health and safety topics.  These trainings will be new and offered in addition to our 
existing training program.  Furthermore, the trainings will be offered to a number of staff including 
facility management staff.  Is this considered academic curricula for the education of occupational 
safety and health professionals or support personnel? 

A #40) No.  The restriction on the use of funds is specific to the development of academic curricula.  
The plan to hire instructors to train on existing curricula is an allowable expense. 

Q #41) Would you please define “sub-contractor”?  If our organization brings on an outside instructor, is 
that instructor considered the contractor or sub-contractor? 

A #41) Yes.  An outside instructor hired to provide a specific training is considered a sub-contractor.  
A sub-contractor is a person or entity that the organization in contract with NYSDOL pays to 
perform a specific service or product as part of the overall program proposal. 

Q #42) Is the WHS RFA program to offer assistance to organizations looking to provide workplace training 
to workers, such as those working in a highway work zone or is it funding for organizations to 
provide this training to employers? 

A #42) As noted in section II.A. of the RFA, the funding is available to eligible entities seeking to 
provide occupational health and safety education, outreach and assistance to workers. 
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Q #43) If we wish to record in-language workshops on video in order to distribute and expand the 
project’s reach to other nail salons, would allowable costs under this RFA include: (1) Hiring 3rd 
party for video production, OR (2) Compensation of staff time towards producing, editing and 
distributing the video, AND/OR (3) Purchasing of video equipment, and/or editing software? 

A #43) Yes.  All three of the costs proposed above would be allowable.  Reimbursement of video 
production expenses is allowed only where the primary function of the video is for the 
dissemination of worker health and safety information.  In addition, applicants proposing video 
production expenses will need to justify the reasonableness of cost and the cost effectiveness of 
subcontracting the service versus purchasing the equipment and using staff time to produce and/or 
edit any video produced, depending on which method is proposed by the applicant. 

New Questions as of 11/17/17 start below: 

Q #44) I see it states that in order to be eligible you have to have two or more paid employees or full time 
equivalency, so do the two or more employees have to be involved in health and safety or just 
general employees? 

A #44) No.  The two or more employee requirement is not specific to health and safety 
programming and can be general employees. 

New Questions as of 12/1/17 start below: 

Q #45) I am having some issues looking opening the application to the Workplace Health and Safety Grant 
– the site will not allow me to “Apply for Grant Opportunity.” 

A #45) The WHS RFA document is available at https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm.  
Questions specific to the Grants Gateway portal should be directed to the Grants Reform Team at: 
grantsreform@its.ny.gov.  In addition, the Grants Reform help desk/hotline can be reached at (518) 
474-5595. 

Q #46) Our organization usually participates in the Hazard Abatement Board (HAB) NYS Safety Grant.  Is 
the NYSDOL Workplace Health and Safety Request for Application (RFA) grant similar or different?  
Please advise. 

A #46) NYSDOL’s WHS RFA is a different funding opportunity that resulted from Governor Cuomo’s 
Task Force to Combat Worker Exploitation and Employee Misclassification.  As noted in section III.A. 
of the RFA, “applicants with existing or pending contracts with NYSDOL [such as a HAB NYS Safety 
Grant] remain eligible to apply for funding under this WHS RFA as long as the application does not 
propose training or services to the same individual or entity as the existing or pending NYSDOL 
contract.  In addition, payments requested cannot duplicate reimbursement from other sources of 
funding.” 

New Questions as of 12/8/17 start below: 

Q #47) Do I need to remove business identifiers from the whole application (program design, budget 
narrative, and work plan) or just the Program Design portion? 

A #47) The request to remove business identifiers in the applications to the WHS funding 
opportunity is specific to the target population.  As stated in section III.B., “While participants will 
not be expected to self-disclose as an exploited worker to receive training or services, and specific 
businesses should not be indicated within the application, applicants must provide a description of 

https://labor.ny.gov/businessservices/funding.shtm
mailto:grantsreform@its.ny.gov
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the industry as well as the systemic health and safety problem(s) that will be addressed with the 
grant.”  This only applies to the responses related to business(es) that employ the target 
population, other than those working for the applicant. 
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